MINUTES OF MEETING
FIDDLER’S CREEK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #1
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Fiddler’s Creek Community
Development District #1 was held on Wednesday, October 28, 2009 at 8:00 a.m., at the

Fiddler’s Creek Club and Spa, 3470 Club Center Boulevard, Naples, Florida 34114.

Present at the meeting and constituting a quorum were:

Phillip Brougham (via telephone) Chairman

James Curland Vice Chairman
Jim Schutt Assistant Secretary
James Robertson Assistant Secretary
Robert Slater Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

Chuck Adams District Manager
Cleo Crismond Operations Manager
Terry Cole District Engineer
Daniel Abbott Weiss Serota, et al.
Tony Pires District Counsel
Mike Charbonneau Director Safety, Fiddler’s Creek Foundation
Ron Albeit GM, Fiddler’s Creek Foundation
Manuel Correia Supervisor, Fiddler’s Creek CDD #2
Gretchen Scott Supervisor, Fiddler’s Creek CDD #2
Peggy Schmitt Supervisor, Fiddler’s Creek CDD #2
Victoria DiNardo Supervisor, Fiddler’s Creek CDD #2
Al Love Resident
Ellen Courtemanche Resident
Kathleen Smith Resident
Roy Wagner Resident
Rhona Lake Resident

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. Mr. Adams announced that all Supervisors

were present at Roll Call, with Supervisor Brougham present by telephone.



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion/Consideration: Gate Traffic
Issue, Interlocal Relationship/Decision
Making Between CDDs

. Executive Summary

Mr. Adams stated the first Order of Business is discussion and consideration of the Gate
Traffic Entry Program. He reported, at the last meeting, he was asked by the Board to prepare an
Executive Summary, outlining some background, some current use and volumes on the particular
gates and to provide some options for the Board’s consideration. Along with that was a request
for the attorney to review the Interlocal Agreement between the two (2) Districts and clarify the
relationship through the Agreement, including the ability for the Districts to make amendments
to the Agreement and any opportunities to terminate the Agreement. In addition, it was noted
that, of the three (3) entry points, Championship is the only one (1) having only a two (2)-lane
entry; one (1) ingress and one (1) egress. He indicated the Engineer was asked to look at the
possibility of adding an additional ingress lane, realizing that back-ups are a continuous issue at
this gate and that may or may not come into play as they consider which options, and/or
variations of the options, the Board may want to implement, moving forward.

Mr. Adams expressed his hope that the Board had an opportunity to review the Executive
Summary, as it gave them good background information. He advised that it gave a history on the
gate system, operating times, the way each of them are currently operated and current traffic
flow concerns. As they have all heard, especially from those in the immediate area of the
Championship gate, that is one (1) of the primary reasons the options are being looked at today.

Mr. Adams further stated another primary reason we are having this discussion is that the
Districts cost-share this program and, at this time, have different opinions on how to utilize the
gate attendants, this is following the fact that both Boards have decided, during the budgeting
process, that they will remove the manning of one (1) of the gates. He further advised they are in
a position now where they need to come to a consensus between the two (2) Districts as to which
one (1) of the gates will be unmanned.

Mr. Schutt stated, relative to the data, he was expecting more elaborate detail. Mr.
Adams stated the data is there; however, the efforts to extract it from the software system are far
more involved and complicated than anyone anticipated. He said Mr. Charbonneau had his IT
Staff working on it for a week to ten (10) days and they had minimal luck, in terms of pulling the

level of detail hoped for, which is the type, the quantity and the time of day through each of the



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

gates. He explained there is a tremendous amount of data, as the number of transactions is in the
hundreds of thousands, cumulatively, across the gates. He indicated that Mr. Charbonneau had
TEM consulting with his IT Staff in an effort to keep the cost down, assuming it was not an
overly involved effort; however, it got to the point where Mr. Charbonneau’s IT Staff realized
they were not going to be able to do it and it was going to take one (1) person from TEM a
minimum of two (2) full days, potentially even more, and they were running out of time. Mr.
Adams indicated that he generalized the volumes and they had the general statistics, which are
contained in the Executive Summary, which shows the volume, by gate, and is broken down into
two (2) categories and gives a feel for the amount of volume coming in through Championship,
both from a visitor and from a resident standpoint. In his Executive Summary, he made the point
that, looking at the road infrastructure coming in through Championship, which is inferior to the
road infrastructure coming in the other two (2) gates, and then, looking at the amount of volume,
it becomes obvious that a large portion of the traffic is using Championship and Mulberry as a
pass-through roadway to the Boulevard.

Mr. Schutt stated, his conclusion, relative to the data, is it merely confirms what they
knew a month ago, which is that the traffic is coming in through Championship gate and the
volume is there, which is the whole issue. He then asked who has clickers. Mr. Charbonneau
advised residents do. Mr. Schutt asked who has them, other than residents. Mr. Charbonneau
responded some of the management staff within Gulf Bay Hospitality. Mr. Schutt asked if any
of the employees that work there have them. Mr. Charbonneau advised they do not. He stated
the only ones that have them are myself, Mr. Albeit and the managers of each department on
staff. The other employees use barcodes, which is 99% of the staff. Mr. Schutt asked how they
are registered and Mr. Charbonneau answered they are registered as staff. He indicated there is a
laser reader, which is “hands free” and it records the inbound and outbound. Mr. Schutt stated
the yearly membership golfers of Fiddler’s Creek have clickers, which means they come in the
same gate that he comes in, and he asked how they are counted. Mr. Charbonneau responded
they are counted as Golf Club Members; within the software, there are dropdowns for “class”.
Mr. Schutt stated when they open the gate with their clicker, it registers as something other than
aresident. Mr. Charbonneau responded affirmatively. Mr. Adams stated the clickers have an ID
attached to them, so the software will pick up if a particular clicker is used and it is assigned to a

particular party and classification.



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

Mr. Brougham stated all of the golfers at The Rookery, that opted to purchase clickers a
year or two (2) ago have clickers for entrance. Mr. Schutt asked how they are identified. Mr.
Charbonneau responded they are identified as Rookery Members. Mr. Curland asked how
vendors are handled that have clickers. Mr. Charbonneau advised they do not have clickers. The
only vendors are the Marriott transport vans and their transportation company that transports the
international employees back and forth. Mr. Curland stated, from personal experience, he knows
that the limo drivers have clickers, because he sat in the limo and watched them operate the gate
with a clicker. Mr. Charbonneau advised several people from Classic Transportation live within
the community.

Mr. Schutt asked if they are able to get the breakdown of residents and non-residents
when they go through the program that they extract the data from. Mr. Charbonneau advised
they can get any of the data, but because of the volume and being that there are so many classes,
it needs to be pulled by volume in a specific timeframe and then broken down by class and put
into a viable spreadsheet. Referring to the information provided in the Executive Summary, he
stated, if you look at one (1) high and low season average, there are upwards of 50,000
transactions for a month, just for these two (2) classes; if you go out further, it is an expansive
amount of data. Mr. Schutt asked if there was any data for Sandpiper. Mr. Charbonneau stated
not on this report. He stated he pulled the numbers from January of 2009 through April 30, 2009
and it was fractional; the main gate was approximately 100,000, Championship was about 45,000
and Sandpiper was roughly 2,000 vehicles for a four (4)-month period.

Mr. Brougham stated the issue at hand is not the people that have been authorized
clickers, it is so they can identify the “commercial” traffic that they have to issue gate passes to
and have heavy volume and heavy trucks through the gate.

Mr. Curland stated this is the first time, in the history of this Board, that they have seen
this many people on any issue, relative to what is going on before the CDD and he applauded
those who took the time to come and those that took the time to send email messages, phone
calls, etc., and he thanked them for their input. He then stated, in light of that, the Executive
Summary, which was in the Agenda package, included three (3) options that were developed
jointly by Mr. Charbonneau and Mr. Adams. He advised, a fourth option was presented by a
member of the community; however, that option is not on the record at any point right now and

he asked to read that option into the record, so that all who were there could understand that



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

option. He stated this will be identified as Option #4, in addition to the options that were
presented by Mr. Adams in his Executive Summary. The option reads:
“Unman Championship Drive, man Sandpiper and limit the opening of the main
entry point, which would be the main gate up front, to residents, occasional
vendors, i.e., cleaning personnel, plumbers, electricians, window washers, etc.,
continue to direct all commercial/construction vehicles to Sandpiper, redirect all
large daily service vehicles, i.e., landscapers, pool service, etc., as well as large
delivery vehicles, i.e., box trucks, tractor trailers, food and beverage delivery
trucks, car carriers, furniture delivery trucks, etc., to Sandpiper. Additionally,
require employees to use the Sandpiper entry; allow remote access to
Championship Drive for all credentialed users, i.e., residents, Rookery golf
members and houseguests who possess clickers or barcode passes.”
Mr. Adams stated that was Option #4, presented by a resident, Pat Schiavo.
Mr. Curland said, at this point, he would like to make a motion that this Board consider

and discuss Option #4.

On MOTION by Mr. Curland and seconded by Mr. Slater,
with all in favor of considering and discussing Option #4.

Mr. Slater stated he read the other three (3) options and Ms. Schiavo’s was the most
logical one presented. He stated he was unsure it could be done, but all of the representatives of
CDD #2 are there at the same time and he indicated it would be nice, for once, to have this as a
joint meeting on this one (1) subject, so they can make one (1) decision now. Mr. Adams
explained that their entire Fiscal Year 2010 schedule has been advertised to allow Fiddler’s
Creek #2 Board Members to discuss items in Fiddler’s Creek #1 meetings and vice versa. When
they attend the other Board’s meeting, they cannot take action; however, they can have
discussions in front of other Board Members, state opinions and, at least, in their mind, feel like
they have a consensus. He further advised they cannot take action in Fiddler’s Creek CDD #1’s
meeting; they will have to wait until their meeting to finalize the action.

Mr. Slater stated the number one (1) complaint that he got out of the emails was the
noise, the speeding and the amount of traffic on Championship Drive. He expressed his

agreement with the people there; he advised he has changed his opinion from what he originally



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

thought a month or two (2) ago, when he originally voted. He indicated it makes more sense to
get Championship Drive the way it was intended to be, as a “members only” and a select few
others, like The Rookery Members, gate, and get everything back to Sandpiper, where the
vendors can come in and have access to all of the new area, the CDD #2 area, the CDD #1 area.
He stated it is really a problem right now and something they do not need in Fiddler’s Creek.

Mr. Curland stated, having read the alternative fourth option, he proposed a modification
to that option, deleting, within the text of that option, “Additionally, require employees to use the
Sandpiper entry.” He indicated he believes that any credentialed employee of this community
should be able to use the easiest access into the community, so he would strike that sentence in
Option #4.

On MOTION by Mr. Curland and seconded by Mr.
Brougham, with all in favor of modifying Option #4, allowing
employees access at any entry.

Mr. Curland stated, for further discussion, he personally received, as Mr. Slater did, as
well as the rest of the Board, numerous emails and voicemails regarding this subject. He said the
interesting point was that the two (2) CDD Boards were in conflict as to their objective. He
stated they can now talk about what CDD #2 has done and what CDD #1 has done. He advised
CDD #1 has initially voted to unman Championship; CDD #2 voted to unman Sandpiper. He
further advised that the preponderance of individuals that contacted him, and the majority that
contacted the rest of the Board Members, expressed an opinion that they wanted Championship
unmanned and this was residents in both CDD #1 and CDD #2. He added this is not a CDD
#1/CDD #2 issue; it is a residents issue and they need to decide on that basis. He noted he has no
idea what promises were made, but one (1) of the major things people expressed to him in their
comments was that there were promises made that Championship would be a “residents only”
gate in the future. He added, they have the opportunity to make that such now; they have a four
(4)-lane gate in CDD #1, which is the main gate, they have a four (4)-lane gate in CDD #2,
which is Sandpiper, and they have a two (2)-lane gate, which has been used in excess of ten (10)
years and the residents along the Championship Drive access have put up with this long enough
and it is time a decision was made. He expressed his disappointment that in the CDD #1

package, he and Mr. Slater and Mr. Brougham included input from the community, via email,



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

and none of those emails were contained in the CDD #2 package, and added, probably rightfully
so. He expressed further disappointment that all of the input, which was all positive to make
Championship a “residents only” gate, was not made available to the Supervisors of CDD #2,
unless they went through CDD #1’s package in total. He added they should not have to go
through both packages to find out what the community’s thoughts.

Mr. Curland stated, with this modification to Option #4, he feels whatever option they
agree upon, they need to discuss implementation.

Mr. Schutt stated they have a lot of residents of CDD #1 and CDD #2 there and they
communicated or sent emails to many of the Supervisors. He said Ms. Schiavo presented Option
#4, which people apparently like. He indicated he would like to hear what the residents present
think of it. He asked Mr. Curland to read it again for their behalf.

Mr. Correia introduced himself as a member of the CDD #2 Board. He stated, for quite
awhile, he was in agreement with what Mr. Curland was saying, but then his back stiffened up at
the end about their elected duty. He indicated he did not realize he had an elected duty to send
over emails. He advised he has responded to everyone by voice; he had dialogueues and quite a
few emails to Ms. Schiavo and the issue he presented to Ms. Schiavo was the same one he just
discussed; he wanted employees to be given rights and he stated he was only thinking of two (2)
employees, Alex and Lynn, which will mean a lot to the women in the audience that take classes,
because they come from Marco Island and they would have to drive all the way around and that
is stupid; he feels anything they do should not be stupid.

Mr. Correia stated his second issue is that he has complained quite a bit that if they were
managing this place as a company, they would have gone bankrupt a long time ago, if this was
the management structure. He noted that he, for one, has not been there for the history of the
whole organization and he has had dialogue with some of the people there and, as time goes by,
his eyes have been opened up, in terms of the history of this and, unfortunately, it got lost in a lot
of the hysterics of the situation, rather than the facts. He stated he appreciates what Mr. Curland
is trying to do, but what he is concerned about and why he bought there is the “wow” factor
coming in the main gate. He stated he totally agrees with Ms. Schiavo and they have been going
back and forth quite a bit. He asked if they are going to destroy the ambiance of Fiddler’s Creek
when people drive in and see a lot of other vehicles. He also asked how many are there and what

is the nature of them because when you drive in, you want to say, “This is the entrance. It looks



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

great.” If it is a reasonable number, he has no problem with it. He stated the reason why he has
changed his mind is that when he moved here, he avoided going through Championship Drive.
Now he goes through there quite often during the day and there is almost no inconvenience
anymore, so he had a hard time understanding what the problem was, until he spent two (2)
hours on the phone with Ms. Schiavo and spent quite a bit of time with Ms. Courtemanche to try
to understand their feelings. He has told everyone he has been in contact with that whatever
CDD #1 wants to do, he will vote for.

Mr. Curland stated he was not trying to besmirch CDD #2. He explained there is so
much information out there that he feels that Mr. Correia, as a Supervisor, did not get in a
package. Mr. Correia responded he did not realize that is part of the environment that it would
be funneled through. He said he filed it away carefully and kept copies, but did not realize that
part of the process was to send it all to Mr. Adams. Mr. Adams advised there were requests of
several members of the CDD #1 Board that they be included in their Agenda packages for the
upcoming meeting. He stated CDD #2 has been receiving a tremendous amount of calls and
emails on their own, 5o he feels they got a good “flavor”, without seeing all of the materials. He
indicated it was his intention that both Boards receive them and it was overlooked, and he
apologized. He advised when he indicated that the Executive Summary and the back-up
materials should go to CDD #2, he failed to indicate that he also wanted those materials behind
them.

Mr. Brougham stated he also agrees with Option #4 presented by Ms. Schiavo. He feels
it would “compromise on the compromise” and reached a balance to address all of the
complaints and all of the options. He indicated his concern is the comments expressed a few
minutes ago. He stated he hopes that if all of the CDD #2 Board Members that are present have
a chance to discuss, or at least express their opinions, without taking action, that they can resolve
this issue in this meeting today and move forward. He said he would hate to think that they will
be back where they were two (2) months ago. With that in mind, he concluded that his opinion
is that he is in favor of the modified Option #4. Mr. Schutt asked Mr. Brougham what he means
by “modified”. He stated they have Ms. Schiavo’s option, with Mr. Curland saying let the
employees come in through any gate they want and as long as they are credentialed, there will
not be a backup, because they will have the bar code or the clicker and they will get in. Mr.

Brougham stated he understood that is the modification to Option #4 - to delete the words,



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 October 28, 2009

“Additionally require employees to use the Sandpiper entry.” He noted, in his terms, that was
the modified Option #4.

Ms. Scott requested that Option #4 be read again, since they did not have it. She
indicated she wanted to clarify what kind of delivery personnel could come in. She stated if they
unman Championship and man the construction gate, they will need to discuss what hours the
gate would be manned, because the Foundation indicated there is not much traffic at the
Sandpiper entrance in the afternoons.

Mr. Adams stated as you read Option #4, you will see a lot of the commercial traffic is
being moved to Sandpiper, so that would be the manned gate from 6:00 a.m., to 6:00 p.m., six
(6) days a week and the option is to unman Championship and that would be credentialed traffic
only.

Mr. Love stated he was on the Board for four (4) years and wanted to point out that
during that time, some of the people, that have since spoken to Mr. Correia, were talking to him
four (4) or five (5) years ago about the same issue. He stated he wanted to applaud CDD #1 for
listening and having an open dialogue and commented it is about time.

Mr. Slater stated when he read Ms. Schiavo’s email yesterday for the first time, he felt it
was a very rational approach. He stated his concern is that they are again limiting traffic through
certain gates and if you look at Fiddler’s Creek as a whole, there are three (3) access points and
he asked how they will distribute all of the traffic around those access points, as evenly as
possible, to spread the volume so that it is not concentrated in any one place. He advised that is
the real issue of Championship; there is too much volume coming in through the Championship
gate.

Ms. Scott asked if credentialed delivery people, like landscapers and pool companies,
also come in through Championship, like the staff, because they have credentials.

Mr. Schutt stated Mr. Charbonneau indicated that most of the commercial people are not
credentialed.

Ms. Scott advised she was talking about the weekly pool maintenance companies that
come in with a little van or a pickup truck that may be credentialed.

Mr. Curland indicated they are not credentialed. He stated the volume of employees is so
small that it will not make a difference. There are about 100 employees that come through with

a bar code, on a daily basis, and about half a dozen that come through with clickers, because they






11






h












17



W















——

!
%
i
]






















N

]
|
i
!
ey S S









I

























